# **ANNUAL REPORT**

# **Community Development Project (CDP)**

2021

Submitted to

Good Neighbors International Nepal

Submitted by

Sonaha Bikash Samaj

**Rajapur-1 Himalipur** 

Bardiya

Annual Report\_ Community Development Project\_ 2021

#### Message from Chairperson/Executive Head

It is my pleasure to say that Sonaha Bikash Samaj has been working as an implementing partner of Community Development Project financial and technical support by Good Neighbors International Nepal since 2016.

Currently, we are working Madhuban municipality ward no. 5, 6,7,8,9, Rajapur municipality ward no. 1, and Geruwa Rural municipality ward no. 1,2,3,4 and 6 focused on the sponsorship programs. Through the Bardiya Community Development project we are centralizing sponsored children for quality education, infrastructure improvement of schools, income generation activities of cooperatives, quality access of health services and child rights and child protection with advocacy an against early child marriage issues. For these activities implementing we always concern with our project stakeholder especially local government, project management community, community development committee, FCHVs, mother groups, school management committee, head teachers, government line agencies, cooperatives members and teachers/parents association which became fruitful result in time.

I would like to special thanks to Good Neighbors International Nepal to provide us financial and technical support for development of Bardiya district as well as marginalized and poorest children through the sponsorship program. I would like to give big hands to our entire project team and stakeholder for completion all activities of 2021 with ensuring quality and transparent way in this pandemic situation.

At the end, I believe we will together in 2022 also through community development project where we will work self-motivated, strong team building with high expectation for better result that makes us for continue of further phase.

Regards Shanti Sonaha Chair person Sonaha Bikash Samaj, Bardiya

# **Table of Contents**

Message from Chairperson/Executive Head2
1. Introduction1
Target Beneficiaries2
2. Education
2.1 Promoting Equitable Access and Participation of Children in Education2
ECED Building Construction handover5
2.2 Improving Internal Efficiency of School and Learning Outcome
3. Livelihood
3.1 Enhancing Utilization of Financial and Marketing Services for Enterprise Development and Income Generation Activities
3.2 Support for Increasing Microenterprise Generated Profit and Employment12
4. Health and WASH
4.1 Enhancing Health seeking behavior of community members13
4.2 Enhancing Safe Hygiene and Sanitation Practice in Community
5. Sponsorship Service and Child Protection
5.1 Information Management of Sponsored Children16
5.2 Strengthening Child Protection Mechanism at local level
5.3 Awareness Raising of Children to claim their rights18
5. Cross Cutting Theme
Project Management Committee Formation20
Community Development Committee Formation20
Project management Committee Meeting21
Capacity Development Training to CDP/PMC members21
Meeting with Sponsor Family
Extra Educational Activities
Special Day Celebration
L-PAC & Joint Monitoring with LGUs23
Social Audit23
7. Best Practices

8. Lesson Learned	24
9. Challenges and Way Forwards	24
10. Conclusion	25

#### 1. Introduction

Sonaha Bikash Samaj (SBS) is a local NGO registered in District Administration office Bardiya and Social welfare Council and it is currently listing in Lumbini province as per new federal structure of Nepal. SBS has been implementing different activities of GNI funded project from 2012-2015 for first phase. SBS has been implementing activities under the Community Development Project in Bardiya with the technical and financial support of Good Neighbors International (GNI-Nepal) from September 2016. Sonaha Bikash Samaj is working with three local governance units namely; Geruwa Rural Municipality (previous Patabhar VDC, Gola VDC, Manau VDC) Madhuban Municipality (previous Sanoshree-taratal Municipality) and Rajapur in Bardiya district.

GNI initiated project in Bardiya District since 2010. Currently, the project has been implementing its activities above mentioned areas. Currently, GNI Bardiya has been supporting 1069 children through integrated program such as sponsorship service and child protection, education, health & WASH, income generation, as major thematic areas whereas community partnership & network building, gender, advocacy and disaster risk reduction as cross cutting issue.

The majority of the inhabitants of this area are Dalits (as named untouchables, historically, politically suppressed communities, mainly away from state mechanism, means and opportunities, having poor human development index), Ex-Kamaiyas (ex-bonded labors, having poor human development Index) and Sonaha (Sonaha are one of the endangered ethnic groups having settlement in the bank of Karnali River). It has been implementing activities by mobilizing mother group, farmer group, child club and parents and effective coordination with the government and non-government agencies

Its aim to fulfill these Objectives:

- To provide educational support to school children and assist in building school infrastructure
- To provide general health check-up to children, parents and community people
- To improve the condition of sanitation and drinking water in the schools and communities
- To support families for their livelihood improvement
- To enhance the socio-economic condition of community people through local resources mobilization for income generation
- To provide skill enhancement training based on situation and demand of the beneficiaries
- To produce local-leaders having concept of sustainable community development

Sonaha Bikash Samaj has been directly working with; 27 Sponsored linked Schools with 1069 sponsored Children, 9 Health services, 6 Community Development Committees, 1 Project Management Committee, 6 Cooperatives with 1842 members and local stakeholders in 2021.

#### **Major Components of Community Development Project**

- 1. Education
- 2. Livelihood Enhancement
- 3. Health and WASH
- 4. Sponsorship Service and Child Protection

Project also implements activities in crosscutting themes: gender equality, advocacy, disaster risk reduction, environment management, partnership and networking along with our core thematic programs.

#### **Target Beneficiaries**

Poorest of the poor children, their parents, disadvantaged and marginalized communities, people from endangered ethnic group, community based organizations (cooperative, mothers group, farmer group, self-help group, SMC, PTA, child club, youth club, HFOMC, VCPC, VWASHCC, and FCHVs) are main beneficiary target groups of the project

#### 2. Education

Education is one of the core components of Community Development Project (CDP) and it aims to improve children's access to education facilities and enhance capacity of community schools to deliver quality education. The education related activities of CDP mainly focuses on promoting equitable access and participation of children in education, improving learning outcome and efficiency of school and capacitating school governing bodies.

The following activities were conducted in year 2021 regards to education theme:

# 2.1 Promoting Equitable Access and Participation of Children in Education

The first major theme is to improve access to and participation of children in education. Since, as a partner of GNI, Sonaha Bikash has been working for geographically, culturally, economically and linguistically diverse communities; the CDP expects that the children representing these communities will have better opportunities for education. Parental education, ECED classroom management meeting with stakeholder, education materials support to children, higher study support, alternative educational mode and CHANGE project activities were launched in this sector in 2021.

# **Parental Education**

To stop school dropout and awareness about education importance in mass through parental education Sonaha bikash Samaj had conducted 12 events parental education three clusters namely; Rajapur municipality, Madhuban municipality and Geruwa rural municipality especially focused on ECED child guardians. The main objective of this activities was to aware parents on enrollment rate of children's admission in school and minimize school dropout. The awareness program had been focused on how to be create quality education and environment in school and community.

Chi	ldren	Adult		Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
		76	259	55	133	147		335

# ECED Management meeting with Stake holder

On dated 6 to 15 April 2021, SBS had been conducted ECED management meeting with stakeholder at Rajapur, Madhuban municipality and Geruwa rural municipality specially focused on primary and secondary linked school of GNI. The main objective of these activities were to observe and monitoring ECED classes and interaction with stakeholder for better management of ECED classroom as well as to proper using of ECED materials in class room. ECED management meeting were conducted in 10 schools of Madhuban, Rajapur municipality and Geruwa rural municipality. During these meeting time there was also discussed to use local resources for demonstration in ECED classroom which will be more fruitful to intimacy local word and goods to ECED child.

Chi	ldren	Adult		Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
		41	14	6	25	24		55

# **EMS Distribution**

Every child has right to education. The children from remote, marginalized and underprivileged community do not get the opportunity to foster their potentialities because they do not have access to education. Therefore, Good Neighbors International is committed and works to provide such opportunity to the children of poor family. Educational Materials support for School Education is one of the major programs of Good Neighbors International. The children who hardly get chance to be enrolled in school because of lack of school uniform and stationary are targeted by this program. School education materials lessen the economic burden of parent who cannot

afford it and also send their children school regularly. Students do their class work and homework regularly if they have educational materials with them so that it helps them to improve their studies. Under the Community Development Project Bardiya was completed EMS distribution to sponsored children on 20 October 2021. It was planned for 842 sponsored children all were received (100%) EMS in this year.

Chil	dren	Adult		Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
448	394			219	434	189	816	816

# **Higher Study Support**

Community Development project has been supporting Educational materials till grade 10, we have planned to continue the support for students those have completed SEE either Educational materials, books or school uniform which is equivalent to NRs. 3000 as Higher Study Support to 226 children with the financial and technical support of GNI Nepal, This support will be NRs. 3000/ children in hand cash with fill-up required documents (cash receipt, Bill of admission, uniform and form). The main objective of this activity is to support sponsored children for continue their further study. It has been confirmed the after SEE children in coordination with school, direct visit to children and their family. 226 students (Girls: and Boys:) were received higher study support till date out of 227 students.

Chil	dren	Adult		Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
140	86			29	104	93	226	226

# Radio Kaksha

Worldwide pandemic situation of Covid 2<sup>nd</sup> waves-19, Nepal also suffered from national lockdown and all schools were also closed. On that situation Good Neighbors International Nepal was planned alternative education for students through Radio Kaksha from Kantipur FM. In Bardiya district there was no access of Katipur FM so that CDP bardiya had broadcasted radio kaksha from radio SATHI FM for 3 months where as I month of radio contribution which was started from 3 July to 5<sup>th</sup> October 2021. The main objective of this activity was to make educational environment through the radio broadcasting during the pandemic situation and to ensure the radio class for grade 7 & 8 through Radio.

Chil	dren	Adult		Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
6450	6000	800	700	-	-	-	500	13900

# **Radio phoning**

Sonaha Bikash Samaj had been board casting radio phoning program targeted grade 6 to 10 students on dated 25 Sep 2021 through local radio station (Sathi FM Rajapur) for 16 episodes which was just completed on dated 27 Nov 2021. The main objective of this radio phoning was to serve student in their learning through distance mode of education and use of technology. This program was made in three steps; general round whereas 5 participants participated for 1 question so that in total 25 participants were competed for 5 questions. Next 2 round was rapid fire round including subjective and objectives question from course of class 6 to 10. There were 391 students participated in general round and 219 students in rapid fire round over the 16 episodes.

Chil	dren	Adult		Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
260	350			-	-	-		610

# **ECED Building Construction handover**

Lack of proper and sufficient space for teaching and learning is one of the major challenges to run ECED classes. To provide child friendly learning space and ensure active engagement of ECED children in learning activities, CDP supported the construction of 1 ECED buildings at 2020 (Janta Basic School Geruwa-1 Bardiya) which was just made handover to SMC in 2021. With the availability of adequate and safe space, children now actively participate in the learning process. This has directly benefited 34 ECED students. *(Include photograph of the building)*.

Chil	dren	Adult		Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
16	18	-	-	4	16	14		34

# **Public Service Announcement**

Sonaha Bikash Samaj is an implementing partner of Good Neighbors International Nepal. SBS has been board-casting public service announcement (PSA) through the local FM station (SATHI FM) of Rajapur for one month supported by GNI. The main objective of these 2 PSAs were to raise awareness on covid-19 in community level and sensitize to people and children to control covid-19 spread. PSA has been board casting since 3rd Jun to 2 July 2021. All together 19950 community people, children, farmers, teachers and parents were direct benefited. From these PSAs.

Chil	dren	Adult		Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	

6160 504	) 4484	4266	3235	6992	9723	700	19950
----------	--------	------	------	------	------	-----	-------

# **CHANGE Project**

CHANGE, which stands for **Creating Hope for Adolescents and Nurturing Girl Education**, is a multi-thematic educational project designed against gender-based discrimination and exclusion in school education. The core beneficiaries of this project are the schoolgirls of 10-16 (school-age group from grade 6-12) years in GNI project districts in Nepal. Girls are deprived of quality educational opportunities based on equity, mainly, in underprivileged communities. The longer-term effected by gender discrimination and educational exclusion have adverse effects on social inclusion, economic marginalization, and multiple forms of violence among women. So in order to make aware the issues and advocate for girls empowerment, the priority of this project lays on quality girls education, life skill training to girls, capacity development of girls, legal awareness on gender equality, knowledge on adolescence and reproductive health, menstrual hygiene and better learning of girls. Some interventions at project area had done in 2021.

#### Establishment Sambadkendra

On dated 15 & 16 March 2021, SBS has been conducted coordination meeting with Madhuban municipality &Geruwa rural municipality for establishing sambad kendra of girls club at the financial and technical support by GNI. The main objective of this activity was to advocate and address the issues of adolescent girls.

Geruwa rural municipality has provided place for Sambadkendra at Pashupati Secondary School GRM-5.

Madhuban municipality agreed to provide place at Guransh Secondary school, Madhuban-6

Madhuban vice mayor & GRM Vice chairperson led the Sambadkendra at Madhuban Municipality & Geruwa rural municipality respectively.

Chile	dren	Adult		Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
25	0	4	4	5	13	15		33

# **Girls Club Formation**

On dated 24 to 28 February 2021, Sonaha Bikash Samaj was formed girls club in seven secondary schools which are linked in CDP project under the CHANGE PROJECT at the financial and technical support by GNI. The main objective of this activity was to aware and advocacy on family, community, school and society against girls' abuse, sexual harassment, child marriage and menstruation. This activity was completed to develop 13 to 19 memberships of girls each school and also minute for focal ladies teacher as a protection of club. Nine schools were Janta secondary,

Guransh SS, Bhirkuti SS, Ekpriyass, Ganesh SS, Shivadurga SS, NR Purnapur SS, Pashupati SS and Janaki SS. 3 participants from each school are selected for girls Sambad Kendra.

Chil	dren	Ac	dult	Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
138	0	0	0	18	55	65	5	138

### Logistic Materials Support to Sambadkendra

On dated 9 and 12 December 2021, Sonaha Bikash Samaj was supported logistic materials to Sambadkendra at Madhuban municipality and Geruwa rural municipality for proper management of girls' sambadkendra. The main objective of this support was to to motivate people or community members to work toward a common vision, understanding or solution to a specific issue of girl's. The support was made to Guransh SS at Madhuban and Pashupati SS Geruwa. Steal doraj, wooden long table, sound system, plastic chairs and stationery items were supported in both clusters.

Chile	dren	Ac	lult	Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
25	0	4	4	5	13	15		33

### Materials Support to Girls club

Sonaha Bikash Samaj has supported materials to girls club under the CHANGE project at the financial and technical support by GNI on dated 27 & 28 July 2021. The main objective of this activity was girl clubs will mobilize to regularly operate the activities at school on specific time, occasion and circumstances. They have to organize meeting, discussion and orientation among other students in the school. They have to develop concept notes, reports, promotional materials and public awareness materials beyond school periphery. 9 girls clubs (EK priya ss, Janta ss, Janaki ss, Pashupati ss, NR Ganesh ss, Bhirkuti ss, Shivadurga ss, NR purnapur ss and Guransh ss) received general materials from the project.

Chil	dren	Ac	lult	Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
138	0	0	0	18	55	65	5	138

# Girls Empowerment and Legal Right Training for Girls

At the financial and technical support of GNI Nepal, Sonaha Bikash Samaj organized girl's empowerment & legal rights training for girls at two clusters of Madhuban municipality and Geruwa rural municipality on dated 2 December to 4 December and 6 December to 8 December respectively. The main objective of this program were to raise awareness of the importance of

educating girls and to generate support for local agencies as well sensitize and build self –esteems of girls themselves and community members on the significance of girl's education. There 38 participants were participated in these training including female teachers from nine secondary schools of Bardiya district. The training was facilitate by Mrs. Laxmi Nepal-advocate of Bardiya and Ratna K.C from SBS.

Chil	dren	Ac	lult	Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
30	0	0	8	2	17	19	1	38

# Girls Kachari

Sonaha Bikash Samaj had organized girl's kachari at Madhuban municipality and Geruwa rural municipality level on dated 10th December 2021 and 24 December 2021 respectively under the Creating Hope for Adolescents and Nurturing Girls Education (CHANGE) project of CDP. The main objective of this program was to sensitize and build self –esteems of girls themselves and community members on the significance of girl's education. The girl's kachari was very fruitful for solving issues of girls through relevant stakeholder's commitment. There were more than 282 participants from 8 secondary schools including municipality Mayor, chairperson, vice-mayor, vice chairperson, chief administration officer, ward chairperson, education department, health department, women and child development department, community women and related organization.

Chil	dren	Ac	dult	Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
157	0	32	93	48	138	96		282

# 2.2 Improving Internal Efficiency of School and Learning Outcome

Improving the quality of education, internal efficiency like infrastructure, child friendly drinking water and toilet, capable teachers, well management system should be needed. Furthermore, sustainability of the education activities depends upon strengthening internal efficiency of school therefore CDP had made some intervention on this sector in 2021.

# **Child Friendly Classroom Management Support**

At the financial and technical support of GNI, Sonaha Bikash Samaj was booked the cost of child friendly classroom management support to three schools namely; Sarshwoti SS Geruwa, Kalika SS Rajapur and Bhirkuti SS Madhuban. The main objective of this support was to create conducive classroom environment for ICT assisted instruction. 85 wooden chairs and 3 shoes racks were supported to 3 schools.

# **Classroom Observation and Teachers Clinic**

On dated 11 to 20 July 2021 education department of Bardiya CDP has visited nine schools to observe ICT classroom and conduct teacher's clinic. The main objective of this activity was to carry out Classroom observation and teachers' Clinic as well as follow-up in ICT application. 5 schools of GRM (Ek-priya SS, Janta SS, NR Ganesh SS, Sarswoti BS and NR Gidarpur BS), 3 schools Madhuban (Bhirkuti SS, Shivdurga SS and NR Purnapur) and 1 school Rajapur (Kalika SS) were completed teacher's clinic. One to one meeting conducted in school basis became very fruitful to push-up of CT application.

\* After long time school visited and ICT classroom observation schools have to make rethink on ICT and manage to classroom with capable staffs.

\* It is easy to conduct one place that type of meeting but not to take effective responsibility by school family like conducted school-wise meeting.

#### 3. Livelihood

The agricultural sector has not been received sufficient government attention and investment. Income is low and highly volatile, and job creation rate is also slow and low. As a result, every year, thousands of young farmers go abroad seeking temporary employment. It is increasingly becoming clear that rural households cannot rely on agriculture as a means of survival, improving livelihood, and reducing poverty. Sonaha Bikash Samaj has been implementing income generation and promotion activities through community based social enterprises to enhance the food security of the communities basically own slogan 'One cooperative one enterprises' So, CDP Bardiya intervention such activities in six cooperatives to get achievement following result of CDP in 2021.

3.1 Enhancing Utilization of Financial and Marketing Services for Enterprise Development and Income Generation Activities

# **Individual Revolving Fund Support to Cooperatives**

On dated 23 Jun 202, Community development project was direct supported individual revolving fund to four cooperatives for promoting individual business of cooperative's members. This support was made for Asal Krishi Sahakari Sastha Ltd, Sanauta Krishi Sahakari Sastha Ltd, Himshikhar Krishi Sahakari Sastha Ltd, Deuthan cooperative, Saino cooperative and Chhimeki Krishi Sahakari Sastha Ltd. The main objective of this support was to make promotion of the business which is already startup by cooperatives. NRs. 960000.00 supported to cooperative for promoting individual business of cooperative members.

Chil	dren	Adult		Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
		7	21	-	26	2	14	28

#### Account and revolving fund monitoring training

Cooperative account and revolving fund monitoring training to board members has been completed on dated 18 February to 3 March 2021. The main objective of training was to enhance knowledge of cooperative board committee on cooperative account and revoling fund mobilization, documentation, monitoring system. Mr. JanakBahadurKathariya (MEDO) and Neja Thapa (JTA) along with Mr. Bharat Bdr. Chaudhary and Sarita Chaudhary (Cooperative manager) were facilitated the training.

Chil	dren	Ac	dult	Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
		12	46	3	48	7	32	58

# Account Keeping Training

SBS Bardiya the Implementing partner of GNI Nepal was conducted Cooperative Account Keeping Training to cooperative mangers. The main objectives of this training was to refresh with enhanced knowledge to the cooperative managers about on cooperative account keeping updating system. This training was conducted at Tharu and Sonaha Community Homestay Training hall on dated 24 to 26 November 2021. This training was facilitate by Mr. Rabindra Paheli.

Chil	dren	Ac	lult	Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
		2	10		11	1	6	12

# **Cooperative Business Plan Preparation Training**

On dated 14 to 16 March, 2021 cooperative business plan preparation training has been conducted at Tharu tatha homestay for cooperative members. The main objective of this training was to develop capacity of cooperative members on business plan preparation. This training was facilitated by Rajendra Raymajhi from Dang.

Chil	dren	Ac	dult	Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
		7	16	1	21	1	14	23

# **Cooperative Leadership Development Training**

SBS Bardiya the Implementing partner of GNI Nepal was conducted Cooperative Leadership Development Training to Cooperative board members along with Homestay members on dated 22 to 23 November 2021. This training objective was to build-up leadership skills of Cooperative board members and also enhancement for leadership with the known about their roles and responsibilities. This training was conducted at Tharu and Sonaha Community Homestay Training hall. This training was facilitate by Mr. Ram Parsad Chaudhary.

Chil	dren	Adult Male Female		Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
		5	15		19	1	11	20

# **TOT on Computer Based Accounting Software**

SBS Bardiya the Implementing partner of GNI Nepal was supported for participate in TOT on computer based accounting software to Mr. Bharat Bahadur Chadhary (Manager of Asal Agriculture Cooperative). With the main objectives to advance level training support to cooperative manager for make a master strength trainer in cooperative working area and cooperative software base all problem solve with training conduct by the master trainer. This training was conducted online-based via Guru Infosys.

Chil	dren	Adult Malo Fomalo		Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
		1			1		1	1

# **Cooperative Software Training One to One Coaching**

SBS Bardiya the Implementing partner of GNI Nepal was completed cooperative software one to one coaching in 5 cooperatives. With the main objectives to help cooperative managers for cooperative software-based data entry and problem solve of software base data entry system and verify of all documents of cooperative with update in software. This coaching were completed facilitation by Mr. Bharat Bahadur Chaudhary (Manager of Asal Agriculture Cooperative).

Chil	dren	Adult		Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
		1	7		6	1	4	7

#### **Communication for the Cooperatives**

SBS Bardiya the Implementing partner of GNI Nepal was supported communication cost of June to December month. The main objective is cooperative communication support for good management of the cooperative and social enterprise. Communication cost was supported to 6

cooperative's p.t.o; Asal Cooperative, Sanauta Cooperative, Deuthan Cooperative, Himshikhar Cooperative, Saino Cooperative and Chhimeki Cooperative.

Chil	dren	Adult Male Female		Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
		2	4		5	1	3	6

### **Cooperative Network Meeting District Level**

For promoting business and creation new ideas an income generation through cooperative CDP project was organized cooperative network meeting at district level of CDP supporting coopratives in tharu tatha sonaha home-stay. There 21 participants were participated from 6 cooperatives. The major objectives of this activities was built the common network for sharing their learning with each other to develop cooperative business startup and plan.

Chil	dren	Adult		Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
		9	12	1	18	2	15	21

3.2 Support for Increasing Microenterprise Generated Profit and Employment

# **Cooperative Business Support to cooperatives**

Under the CDP Bardiya. SBS has supported cooperative business support to Deuthan cooperative GRM-1, for farm machinery, Asal cooperative of Rajapur-1 for milk collection, Himshikhar cooperative GRM-4 for garment promotion and social enterprises of home stay promotion at Rajapur-1 Bardiya. The main objective of this direct support was made for social enterprises promotion and increased employment and new business. The direct support was made as following;

NRs. 1862330 was supported on dated 23 Jun 2021 to Deuthan cooperative

NRs. 670153 was supported to Asal cooperative for milk collection business promotion.

NRs. 204659 was supported to Himshikhar for garment business promotion.

NRs. 300885 was supported to tharu tatha home-stay for social enterprise promotion.

Chil	dren			Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
		219	1072	64	1101	126	888	1291

### 4. Health and WASH

### 4.1 Enhancing Health seeking behavior of community members

Rural communities lack health seeking behaviour. To enhance health seeking behaviour of target households, support was provided for conducting health education campaigns/ trainings, FCHVs mobilization, basic equipment support to HP, capacity enhance of health workforce, community health training to FCHVs and orientation to HFOMC in 2021.

#### **Basic Utility Support**

Sonaha Bikash Samaj Bardiya was supported equipment to health facilities on dated 27 to 28 Jun 2021 in its working areas as the financial and technical support by GNI. The main objective of these support were to improve on health services in community level and system strengthening of local health institutions. Basic utility supported to 11 ORC (Shanti bazar, Shantipur, Gidarpur, Loharpur Khonpur, Thapapur, Janaknagar, Bhatera , 11 no town, Gangabasti, Dasarathbasti ORC ). the major support were BP set, Height & Weight machine, Dressing set , Thermometer, Suture set were supported to ORC

Chil	dren	Adult		Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
2535	2445	5470	3955	2524	7151	4730	532	14405

# **Equipment Support to Health Facilities**

Sonaha Bikash Samaj Bardiya was supported equipment to health facilities on dated 27 to 28 Jun 2021 in its working areas as the financial and technical support by GNI. The main objective of these support were to improve health system of local health institutions and made quality Services at local level and increased patient flow. Equipment supported in 8 health Facilities (Gola HP, Manau HP, Daulatpur HP, Patabhar HP, Taratal HP, Sanoshree HP, BHC Patabhar, Saktipur BHC). The major items of supported were refrigerator, autoclave, height & weight machines, surgical drum, screen stand, ENT ,BP set , suture set, Snelling chart were supported to health facilities.

Chile	dren	Ac	lult	Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
1735	1809	4230	3870	2720	5677	3247	624	11644

# **FCHVs mobilization**

Sonaha Bikash Samaj was completed FCHVs mobilization on month of December 2021 at Geruwa rural municipality-4 & 6. This activity was run from month of Feb to Dec 2021 where 28 FCHVs were mobilized in community level for serving health education to community people

Chil	dren	Adult		Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
			28	1	17	10		28

# **HFOMC** Orientation

For seeking behavior change of community people and strengthening health facilities, Sonaha Bikash Samaj conducted orientation to health facilities operation management committee. These events had been done in three places at working area of CDP project. Events were facilitate by health post incharge.

Chil	dren	Adult		Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
		14	16	2	19	9		30

# **Community Health Training to FCHVs**

First event community training to FCHVs was conducted at Gola health post on dated 26 to 28 February and Second events was conducted at Manau Health post on dated 12 to 14 March, 2021 at the financial and technical support by GNI. The main objective of this training was to enhance the capability of FCHVs, raise awareness on Health education and also discuss on their issues and challenges. Total 28 FCHV and 2 Health Workforce were participants in that training. Training Was Facilitated by Health post in charge and Prashamsa Bhandari (PHA)

Chil	dren	Adult		Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
			28	1	17	10		28

# **Covid-19 Response**

On dated 27 to 28 Jun Sonaha Bikash Samaj was supported some medical equipment to Rajapur, Madhuban, Geruwa covid hospital and district hospital Bardiya. The support was made for GNI-HO under the COVID-19 response 2021. The main objective of this support was to minimize pandemic situation in Bardiya district and protect from COVID-19. Supported Items were Oxygen flow meter, Oxygen mask, Venturing Faces Masks, Reservoir bag masks, PPE set, VTM Swab Collection kit, Antigen Kit, Pulse Oximeter, and Disinfectant Solution. The worth of this support was NRs.91630.

# **Temporary Hand Washing station Installation**

On dated 8 to 15 February 2021, Sonaha Bikash Samaj has installation temporary hand washing station at five schools under the CDP project funded by GNI. The main objective of this support was to help students, teacher & community people to protect their health and prevent the spread

of unforeseen disuses and other health problems. Temporary Hand washing Station Installation at Five school (Shree EkpriyaSS, NepalRastriyaSS, NepalRastriyaPashupatiLSS, ShreeKalika SS & Shree Janta SS)

# Hygiene kit and protective Gear Support to Health facility

On dated 18 to 26 February 2021 CDP project was supported hygiene kit and protective gear to six health facilities of working areas funded by GNI. The main objective of this support was to oprate smoothly health services in pandemic situation. Hygiene materials (Sanitizer, Handwashing Soap, Broom, Bucket, Mug, Toilet cleaner, Phenyl, Toilet brush) and Protective gears (Thermal gun, PPE set, Masks, Gloves, Face shield) were Supported six health post.

# **Evaluation of MHM Project**

Conducting Evaluation of MHM project at 5 schools (Kalika SS, JantaSS, Ekpriya SS, Bhirkuti S.S, Purnapur SS) among 10 MHM targeted school in Bardiya on dated 2 to 4 March 2021. The main objective of Conducting Evaluation survey was to assess the overall result and achievement of the project and Document the major findings and lesson learned from the project and share it with broader stakeholders.

# 4.2 Enhancing Safe Hygiene and Sanitation Practice in Community

# General Health check-up of Sponsored Children

General health check-up is mandatory activity under the CDP project. All sponsored children have to need health check-up in yearly basis so Sonaha Bikash Samaj has been conducting regular health check-up of sponsored children. The main objective of this activity was to find out the health condition of sponsored children.

Chil	dren	Adult		Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
404	412			216	414	192	816	816

# **Orientation to S-WASH-CC**

Sonaha Bikash Samaj is an implementing partner of GNI, was conducted one day MHM orientation meeting to S-WASH-CC members at ten schools where already implemented such activities through MHM project in Bardiya CDP. The main objective of this activity was to aware S-WASH-CC members about on their role and responsibility improving on school drinking water and hygiene.

Chil	dren	Ac	dult	Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
7	3	54	29	10	35	48		93

# 5. Sponsorship Service and Child Protection

# 5.1 Information Management of Sponsored Children

#### Home visiting

SBS Bardiya had completed home visiting of 1069 sponsor children which is one of the major activities of the sponsorship Service and Child protection department. The purpose of this activity was to take update, status and presence of the children in the community. During home visiting project staffs wee counselling to sponsored children for education and its importance.

Ch	ildren	Ac	dult	Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
588	481			187	578	304	1069	1069

#### Annual Child Letter

Annual child letter is one of the most mandatory activity of sponsorship program under the community development project. After orientation to CFs about on ACL management, staffs were moved at field level to manage ALC. On this year community development project Bardiya achieved 99.9% ACL means 828 (Boys-370 & Girls-458) out of 829 children.

Chil	dren	Adult		Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
458	370			175	546	107	828	828

# Annual Progress Report 2022

SBS Bardiya has been collecting Annual Progress Report (APR 2022) of Sponsored Children. It is one of the major activity of sponsorship service under the CDP project which is prepared once a year according to the guideline of sponsorship service. The purpose of this activity is to collect quality APR data of sponsored children for sustainability of sponsorship service program.

Chil	dren	Ac	lult	Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
426	305			129	389	213	715	731

# **GML Management**

Gift money and Letter management is one of the core activity of sponsorship program. Children received gift or letter from their sponsor and should be sent own reply to them. The main objective of this activity was to make good and sustainable relationship between the child and sponsor.

Chil	dren			Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	

100 43	29	79	35	143	143
--------	----	----	----	-----	-----

#### Token of Love to sponsorship graduates

Token of love was distributed to over 16 & 18 aged children who were recently system dropout in 2020. Children received own photo along with frame as a token of love. The main objectives of this activity was to motivate and provide remembrances during the sponsorship program. 268 children received Token of Love in the month of February, 2021.

C	hildren	Ac	dult	Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
50	218			36	171	61		268

# 5.2 Strengthening Child Protection Mechanism at local level

#### Formation/Activation of child protection committee

On dated 15 to 16 March Sonaha Bikash Samaj Bardiya was activated of RM/M level child protection committee in Geruwa Rural Municipality and Madhuban Municipality. The main objective of this activity was to strengthening CP mechanism in working RM/M

Chile	dren	Ac	lult	Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
2	2	31	15	8	22	20	4	50

# Formation/Activation of Child Committee (Ward level)

Sonaha Bikash Samaj Bardiya has conducted Ward level Child Protection Committee formulation in 5 ward of Geruwa Rural Municipality and 5 ward of Madhuban Municipality with the close coordination and collaboration of both rural municipality and Municipality. The main objective of this activity was to strengthening CP mechanism in working RM/M. That activity was done on 2nd to 9th April 2021. There were 143 participants ware participated including 84 male and 59 female.

Chil	dren	Ac	dult	Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
8	4	80	51	19	45	79	4	143

# Awareness raising training to the stakeholders on CRC and child marriage

On dated 27 and 28 September 2021, Sonaha Bikash Samaj has completed Stakeholders awareness on child rights, protection and child marraige(SMC, PTA), Local level institutions of child right and protection) on the topic of child rights, protection and child marriage on Madhuban municipality and Geruwa rural municipality respectively at the financial and technical support by

GNI. The main objective of this training was to aware related stakeholder to stop child marriage ans sensitise to them on child rights and protection. The session was facilitated bu Mr. Rabga Prasad Timilsena from Kailali district. At that time strategy of ending child marriage book of Madhuban also released. There were 42 people (25 Male & 17 Female) participated from both palika

Chil	dren	Ac	dult	Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
		25	17	5	22	15		42

# Support to Policy Development and Planning

Sonaha Bikash Samaj has organized support to policy development and planning interaction meeting with stakeholder in two clusters at Madhuban municipality and Geruwa rural municipality on dated 21 December and 23 December 2021 respectively. The main objective of this activity was to support action plan built by LGUs for ending child marriage. There 49 participants were participated from both clusters where all palika bodies were involved in this interaction meeting.

Chil	dren	Ac	dult	Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
		31	18	7	25	17		49

# 5.3 Awareness Raising of Children to claim their rights

# Formation and Activation of child clubs and network (School level)

Sonaha Bikash Samaj Bardiya has been conducted child club formation/reformation in 16 residing (Basic and Secondary level) school of Madhuban, Geruwa and Rajapur Municipality with the close coordination of RM/M & school. The objective of this activity was to strengthening the child protection mechanism and make platform for raising the child voice similarly make functional child clubs also. During the child club formation, there were supported stationery materials to Child club for conducting regular meeting of CC member.

Chil	dren	Ac	dult	Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
128	94			35	66	121	13	222

# Street Drama

At the financial and technical support of GNI Nepal, Sonaha Bikash Samaj organized street drama at Madhuban municipality and Geruwa rural municipality level on dated 10th December 2021 and 24 December 2021 respectively under the SS &CP. The main objective of this program was to

sensitize community people and school about on stopping child marriage. There were more than 282 participants from 8 secondary schools including municipality Mayor, chairperson, vice-mayor, vice chairperson, chief administration officer, ward chairperson, education department, health department, women and child development department, community women and related organization.

Chil	dren	Ac	lult	Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
68	85	52	77	35	122	125	34	282

# **Complain Box Operation (Notice board Support)**

As per need assessment Sonaha Bikash Samaj was supported notice boards instead of complain box to child club in 8 schools namely; Ekpriya SS, Janta SS, NR Ganesh,Kalika SS, Bhirkuti SS, Shivadurga SS, NR Purnapur SS, and Guransh SS on dated 27 & 28 July 2021 under the community development project. The main objective of this activity was o aware children on child right and child protection through IEC/BCC material publication.

Chile	dren	Ac	lult	Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
3751	3001			422	3680	2650	553	6752

# CRC Training to CC

GNI Bardiya CDP has completed 2 days Child Right & Child Protection (CRC) Training to CC member in two clusters (Geruwa RM&Madhuban Municipality) with the coordination of Geruwa RM, Madhuban andRajapur Municipality and Schools. The training conducted from 15th to 18 March 2021 at Bijaya Hotel Shantibajar and Hotel Sunrise Madhuban. This activity conducted with the purpose of increasing the knowledge and understanding levels of children on child right and child Protection. 42 CC members (Male 17 & Female25) were actively participated from 16 schools. ( 9 school's CC member from Geruwa RM , 2 school's cc member from Rajapur Municipality and 5 school's CC member from Madhuban Municipality.

Chil	dren	Ac	dult	Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
25	17			6	28	8	5	42

# Life Skill Training to Child club

Sonaha Bikash Samaj had organized one day Life Skill Training to CC member in 2 clusters at Geruwa RM 3 Bijaya Hotel and Bhirkuti SS chitale Madhuban. 43 Participants were participated from 15 schools in that training. The financial and technical support was provided by GNI on dated

25th Nov 2021. The main objective of this training was to explore the competence and use their skills in group. This training were facilitate by GNI-DO Staffs (Laxman KC SSO& Gita Chaudhary SSA).

Chil	dren	Ac	dult	Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
26	17			6	29	8	5	43

# **Child led supportive Events**

SBS Bardiya, Implementing partner of GNI Nepal has conducted child led supportive events in 8 secondary level school of Rajapur, Geruwa and Madhuban Municipalities with the close coordination of school' child club. The events were led by child club in their respective school by conducting different ECA activities (Quiz, Speech and Poem Competition. The objective of this event was to develop capacity of child club on ECA to show their inner talent in the mass and school. Prize for ECA was provided by GNI/SBS.

Chil	dren	Ac	dult	Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
65	55			16	51	53	3	120

# 5. Cross Cutting Theme

# **Project Management Committee Formation**

On dated 9 February 2021, project management committee was formed under the CDC project. The main objective of this event was to select new member for PMC which might be easy to implement CDP project in community level. Eight members were selected for PMC from community development committee. This event was organized in Tharu tatha Sonaha home-stay. Eight members were selected for PMC including 6 female and 2 male. Mr. Rameshwor Chaudhary is leading PMC for next 2 years.

Chil	dren	Ac	dult	Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
		2	6	1	6	1	8	8

# **Community Development Committee Formation**

On dated 25 to 31 January 2021, Sonaha Bikash Samaj was formulated new community development committee in six places of covering working area. The main objective of this formulation was select new member for CDC which might be easy to implement CDP project in community level.

Chi	ldren	Ac	dult	Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
		6	34	3	26	11	40	40

#### **Community Development Committee Meeting**

As per POA 2021 under the CDP Bardiya there was provision to conduct monthly CDC meeting. But regarding pandemic situation of Covid-19 2<sup>nd</sup> waves CDC meeting was not regularly conducted. However, 6 mattings were conducted in cluster basis of CDP working areas. These meeting were mainly focused on project implementation in transparency ways and solving communities' issues in right time. CDC is one of the part of good governance of CDP project where each and every activities are sharing.

Chil	dren	Adult Male Female		Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
		6	34	3	26	11	40	40

#### **Project management Committee Meeting**

For CDP project, project management committee was one of the steering committee which was formed for two years as per guideline of GNI. Proper implementation of project activities in transparency with accountability was major objective of this committee. From member of CDC, 1 is participated in PMC for 2 years of CDP project and play role as a bridge between project activities and community. The provision of PMC meeting was bio-monthly as per POA but pandemic situation there was only 4 meetings were conducted in 2021.

Chil	dren	Adult Male Female		Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
		2	6	1	6	1	8	8

#### **Capacity Development Training to CDP/PMC members**

On dated 17 to 18 March 2021, Sonaha Bikash Samaj was organized capacity development training to CDC and PMC members at Tharu tatha Sonaha Home-stay. The main objective of this training was to enhance capacity of new CDP/PMC members on good governance of CDP project. This training was facilitated by District in charge and PHA.15 participants (14 Female and 1 Male) were participated on this 2 days training.

Chil	dren	Ac	dult	Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
		1	14	1	10	3	15	15

# **Meeting with Sponsor Family**

Sonaha Bikash Samaj, Implementing partner of GNI Nepal has been conducted meeting with sponsor family at 9 to 16 March 2021 Geruwa rural municipality, Madhuban and Rajapur municipality on March 2021. The main objective of this meeting was to build strong relationship with sponsor family as well as manage quality data of sponsor children and aware to parents to stop school dropout of their children.413 (Male 65 and Female 348) sponsor family were participated on these meeting

Chil	dren	Adult Male Female		Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
		65	348	35	257	121	413	413

# **Radio Program PSA board casting**

Child Marriage is one of the Major issue among the child protection issues in Bardiya. Even though some families knows about the impacts of early child marriage they are not able to stop their children to do marriage in early age because of their cultural trends. So, to protect children from adverse impact of child marriage SBS Bardiya, implementing partner of GNI Nepal has been broadcasting 2 PSA radio jingle with the coordination of SATHI FM from Rajapur, Ram gyanu FM Madhuban and Radio Tiger FM Bardiya for one month.

Chil	dren	Adult Male Female		Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
22350	20150							42500

# **Extra Educational Activities**

SBS is implementing partner of GNI. On month of December 2021, SBS was planned to support some ECA materials to two secondary school of its working areas for conducting ECA through child club. The support was made for Guransh SS and Ek priya SS under the extra educational activities POA 2021. The main objective of this program was to all round development of the students and to flourish the inner talent of the students.

Chil	dren	Ac	lult	Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
1352	1337			459	1065	1165		2689

# **Special Day Celebration**

Sonaha Bikash Samaj is an implementing partner NGO of GNI Nepal. Sonaha Bikash Samaj has been celebrated 111th international women day with collaboration of Geruwa rural municipality and Madhuban municipality on dated 8th March 2021 and national child day 14 September 2021. The main objective of this event was to aware on value of women rights, child rights and equal access to all social activities.

Children	Adult	Dalit	Janajati	Others		Total
----------	-------	-------	----------	--------	--	-------

Girls	Boys	Male	Female				Sponsored children/family	
175	178	50	154	55	354	148	50	557

### L-PAC & Joint Monitoring with LGUs

SBS was organized Local Project Advisory Committee (L-PAC) meeting and joint monitoring with stakeholder in two places; Geruwa rural municipality and Madhuban municipality on dated 21 December 2021 & 24 December 2021 respectively. The objective of the meeting was to present the progress of community development project 2021. The main objective of this activity was to share the target v/s achievement of CDPs of the period of Jan-Dec 2021 and collect feedback and recommendation for increasing effectiveness of project results from Palika members for upcoming year (A brief report was in annex)

Children		Adult		Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
		26	7	3	14	16	2	33

#### **Social Audit**

Sonaha Bikash Samaj organized social audit of 2021 January to December under the community development project on the premises of Sonaha Bikasha Samaj meeting hall on dated 30 December 2021. The main objective of this activity is to share all plan V/s achievement of POA 2021 and collect feedback and suggestion from concerned stakeholders for the upcoming year. There were 9 females and 19 males who participated in the social audit including head teacher, health post in charge, cooperative chairperson, PMC and CDC members and related stakeholder of concern working areas of CDP Bardiya. (*A brief report is in annex*)

Children		Adult		Dalit	Janajati	Others	Sponsored	Total
Girls	Boys	Male	Female				children/family	
		18	10	3	16	9		28

#### 7. Best Practices

Submission and endorsement all activities to Local Government units, PMC and CDC before the implementation of activities at field level.

Developed and released book on ending child marriage strategy for Geruwa rural municipality and Madhuban municipality with close coordination.

Formed and activated child right committee at palika level and wards level for advocate child issues.

Some schools have practiced ICT application in classroom for quality education.

Cooperatives started social business as per motto of "one cooperative one business"

Local government has been practiced to work GNI modality on ECED building construction, MHM toilet and MHM corner.

It has been practiced to invest 60/40 on construction work between project and LGUs.

Girls empowerment and girls kachari under the CHANGE project had made first initiation by CPD project in Bardiya district which will aware to Local government that types of activities in their annual plan.

Sharing plan, Procurement documents and joint staff meeting of both CDP district (Kailali & Bardiya) made to project implementation easier.

Well team building and coordination Bardiya CDP achieved 100% program activities in that pandemic situation of 2<sup>nd</sup> waves Covid-19.

Joint monitoring and Social audit has been practiced among related stakeholder of CDP project and concrete feedback and suggestion are implementing for upcoming plan.

#### 8. Lesson Learned

Before program activities implementation, there should be needed to do need assessment and community contribution for ownership and sustainability.

Child friendly environment, quality infrastructure, using local resources in class room and friendly teaching pedagogy can effectively improve quality education.

Guardian not only dependent in school education for quality education of children it should be needed to parental education for guidance their children.

Only school base awareness program regarding child marriage is not sufficient to stop child marriage, it should be needed to focus activities in house, tole and community with close collaboration LGUs.

# 9. Challenges and Way Forwards

Most teachers also knew which students could answer correctly and which couldn't but they rarely supported those struggling students. So, project should focus on those teachers capacity enhancement activities.

Lack of Adequate Finance (inadequate investment capital, insufficient loan, and inefficient financial market are the major obstacles in doing business so project should focus on utilization of local resources and market linkage activities.

There are such challenges in social enterprises like; lack of working premises, lack of Managerial and technical skills, lack of Adequate Market, erratic supply of raw materials and regulatory constraints. So, project focus on those activities for improving social enterprises at community level in upcoming plan.

Child marriage one of the issues of CDP working areas so it will be better to design ending child marriage annex project for Bardiya district.

For sustainability of the project activities depends on demand and supply basis so, POA activities will be better to amendment as per situation and government priority.

Flood and fire are hazards especially Rajapur municipality and Geruwa rural municipality which most of farmers lost their house and cultivation in yearly basis. So, it will be better to stock/matching reserve fund for emergency with collaboration of LGUs.

# 10. Conclusion

Child-centered Community Development Project is one of the holistic approaches to empower children to make theme capable of claiming their rights, promote their development and help their families achieve self-reliance and communities to have better services and infrastructures.

In 2021 AD, Sonaha Bikash Samaj an implementing partner of GNI had worked together to achieve core components of CDP targets and goals. Even though Nepal was suffering in pandemic situation by 2<sup>nd</sup> waves of Covid-19, there were some barriers to complete all activities but well team building of the project and working efficiency led to complete all activities in time. Sonaha Bikash Samaj had completed 100% activities and budget execution was 94.03% in 2021.

Strategy on ending child marriage book publication, girls empowerment and girls kachari, school building handover, individual revolving support to cooperatives, farm machinery support to cooperative, child friendly classroom management support, mandatory activities of CDP project like; education materials support, general health check-up of children, home visiting, annual child letter, annual progress report of children, higher education support to children were major part of CDP project for 2021 POA which had been completed.